

Encore JR/SR High School

Regular Encore Board of Directors Meeting - June 17, 2024

Published on June 14, 2024 at 3:58 PM PDT Amended on June 14, 2024 at 4:41 PM PDT

Date and Time

Monday June 17, 2024 at 6:30 PM PDT

Location

Encore High School 16955 Lemon Street Hesperia CA 92345

All public comment, both on agenda items and non-agenda items within the jurisdiction of the Board, should be provided during the agenda item titled, "Public Comment." Members of the public who wish to comment during the Board meeting may fill out a public comment card. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per agenda item and one three (3) minute period to address an item not on the agenda. If an interpreter is needed for comments, they will be translated to English and the time limit shall be six (6) minutes per person per agenda item. The Board limits the total time for public comment to thirty minutes, and may extend this time at its sole discretion. The Board reserves the right to mute or remove a participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the Board meeting after being warned by the Board Chair or designee that they are disrupting the meeting.

Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

Agenda

			Purpose	Presenter	Time
I.	Оре	ening Items			6:30 PM
	A.	Call the Meeting to Order		Chandale Sutton	
	В.	Record Attendance		Chandale Sutton	1 m
	C.	Public Comment		Chandale Sutton	1 m
	D.	Approval of the Agenda	Vote	Chandale Sutton	1 m
	E.	Board Member Comments	Discuss	Chandale Sutton	6 m
II.	Bud	dget and Finance			6:39 PM
	A.	Approval of 2024-25 Consolidated Application	Vote	Patricia Alaimalo	3 m
III.	Gov	vernance			6:42 PM
	A.	Approval of Workplace Violence Prevention Plan	Vote	Joseph Thibodeaux	3 m
	В.	Open Session Item	Vote	Chandale Sutton	45 m
		Authorize Board Chair to create a new job descrip position.	tion for Executiv	e Director/Principal	
IV.	Clo	sing Items			7:30 PM
	A.	Adjourn Meeting	Vote	Chandale Sutton	2 m

A copy of the agenda will be posted at least 72 hours before such meeting. A copy of the written materials which will be submitted to the Board of Encore Junior and Senior High School for the Arts is available along with this agenda following the posting of the agenda by emailing Sabrina Bow at sbow@encorehighschool.com. Any public records relating to an agenda item for an open session of the Board shall be available for inspection at 16955 Lemon Street, Hesperia CA 92345.

Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this public meeting shall be made 24 hours prior to the meeting by calling (760) 956-2632 or emailing Joseph Thibodeaux at jthibodeaux@encorehighschool.com. All efforts will be made for reasonable accommodations consistent with the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. The agenda and public documents can be modified upon request as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Coversheet

Approval of 2024-25 Consolidated Application

Section: II. Budget and Finance

Item: A. Approval of 2024-25 Consolidated Application

Purpose: Vote

Submitted by:

Related Material: 2024-25 CARS Spring Release- Encore (Draft for Board Approval).pdf

Consolidated Application

Encore Jr./Sr. High School for the Performing and Visual Arts (36 75044 0116707)

Status: Certified Saved by: Roy Kim Date: 5/3/2024 10:45 AM

2024–25 Certification of Assurances

Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year. A complete list of legal and program assurances for the fiscal year can be found at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca24assurancestoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:

Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, conAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant; that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and I agree to participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Office. Legal assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. I certify that we accept all assurances except for those for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. I certify that actual ink signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name	Sabrina Bow
Authorized Representative's Signature	
Authorized Representative's Title	Executive Director
Authorized Representative's Signature Date	06/17/2024

Warning

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:5/3/2024 Page 1 of 5

Consolidated Application

Encore Jr./Sr. High School for the Performing and Visual Arts (36 75044 0116707)

Status: Draft Saved by: Roy Kim Date: 5/3/2024 10:46 AM

2024–25 Protected Prayer Certification

Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally protected prayer in public elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:

Miguel Cordova, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, MCordova@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0381

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The local educational agency (LEA) hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that the LEA has no policy that prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in public schools as set forth in the "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools."

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement	Yes
Authorized Representative's Full Name	Sabrina Bow
Authorized Representative's Title	Executive Director
Authorized Representative's Signature Date	06/17/2024
Comment	
If the LEA is not able to certify at this time, then an explanation must be provided in the comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)	

Warning

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:5/3/2024 Page 2 of 5

5 of 20

Consolidated Application

Encore Jr./Sr. High School for the Performing and Visual Arts (36 75044 0116707)

Status: Draft Saved by: Roy Kim Date: 5/3/2024 10:46 AM

2024–25 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification

CDE Program Contact:

Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCAPAddendum@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5233

Initial Application

To receive initial funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must have a plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply for ESSA funds for the first time are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), the LCAP Federal Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in conjunction with the Addendum and the ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan.

In order to initially apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the current LCAP has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification, the LEA agrees to submit the LCAP Federal Addendum, that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA, to the California Department of Education (CDE) and acknowledges that the LEA agrees to work with the CDE to ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying for federal education funds.

Returning Application

If the LEA certified a prior year LCAP Federal Addendum Certification data collection form in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System, then the LEA may use in this form the same original approval or adoption date used in the prior year form.

County Office of Education (COE) or District	
For a COE, enter the original approval date as the day the CDE approved the current LCAP. For a district, enter the original approval date as the day the COE approved the current LCAP	
Direct Funded Charter	06/17/2024
Enter the adoption date of the current LCAP	
Authorized Representative's Full Name	Sabrina Bow
Authorized Representative's Title	Executive Director

Warning

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:5/3/2024 Page 3 of 5

Consolidated Application

Encore Jr./Sr. High School for the Performing and Visual Arts (36 75044 0116707)

Status: Draft Saved by: Roy Kim Date: 5/3/2024 10:47 AM

2024–25 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:

Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, conAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding selections with their local governing board.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that the Local Board has approved	No
the Application for Funding for the listed fiscal year	

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners, then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that parent input has been received	No
from the District English Learner Committee (if applicable) regarding the	
spending of Title III funds for the listed fiscal year	

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year, the LEA must apply for the funds by selecting Yes below. Only the categorical funds that the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant)	Yes
ESSA Sec. 1111et seq. SACS 3010	
Title II, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction)	Yes
ESEA Sec. 2104 SACS 4035	
Title III English Learner	No
ESEA Sec. 3102 SACS 4203	
Title III Immigrant	No
ESEA Sec. 3102 SACS 4201	
Title IV, Part A (Student and School Support)	Yes
ESSA Sec. 4101 SACS 4127	

Warning

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:5/3/2024 Page 4 of 5

Consolidated Application

Encore Jr./Sr. High School for the Performing and Visual Arts (36 75044 0116707)

Status: Draft Saved by: Roy Kim Date: 5/3/2024 10:48 AM

2024–25 Substitute System for Time Accounting

This certification may be used by auditors and by California Department of Education oversight personnel when conducting audits and sub-recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is automatically granted when the local educational agency (LEA) submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:

Hilary Thomson, Fiscal Oversight and Support Office, HThomson@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0765

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used to document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.

Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, are described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the web at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/.

2024–25 Request for authorization	Yes
LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with implementing the system (Maximum 500 characters)	No known deficiencies.

Warning

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:5/3/2024 Page 5 of 5

Coversheet

Approval of Workplace Violence Prevention Plan

Section: III. Governance

Item: A. Approval of Workplace Violence Prevention Plan

Purpose: Vote

Submitted by: Related Material:



Workplace Violence Prevention Plan

This document shall outline Encore High School's ("Encore") Workplace Violence Prevention Plan ("Plan") as required by Labor Code § 6401.9. It shall be the policy of Encore provide its employees with a safe and healthy work environment. To that end, Encore shall take appropriate actions to prevent acts of violence, threats, intimidation, and harassment from occurring on campus and during the performance of employees' job duties.

I. **DEFINITIONS**

For purposes of this Plan, the following definitions apply:

"WVPP" means Workplace Violence Prevention Plan

"Emergency" means unanticipated circumstances that can be life threatening or pose a risk of significant injuries to employees or other persons.

"**Engineering controls**" mean an aspect of the built space or a device that removes a hazard from the workplace or creates a barrier between the worker and the hazard.

"Log" means the violent incident log, required in Part III of this Plan.

"Plan" means this Workplace Violence Prevention Plan.

"Threat of violence" means any verbal or written statement, including, but not limited to, texts, electronic messages, social media messages, or other online posts, or any behavioral or physical conduct, that conveys an intent, or that is reasonably perceived to convey an intent, to cause physical harm or to place someone in fear of physical harm, and that serves no legitimate purpose.

"Workplace Violence" includes but is not limited to the following: (i) the threat or use of physical force against an employee that results in, or has a high likelihood of resulting in, injury, psychological trauma or stress, regardless of whether the employee sustains an injury; (ii) an incident involving a threat or use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, including the use of common objects as weapons, regardless of whether the employee sustains an injury; (iii) the following four workplace violence types:

- Type 1: violence committed by a person with no legitimate business at the worksite.
- Type 2: violence directed at employees by students, parents, contractors, volunteers, or visitors.
- Type 3: violence against an employee by a present or former employee, supervisor, or manager.
- **Type 4**: violence committed in the workplace by a person who does not work there but has or is known to have had a personal relationship with an employee.

Workplace Violence does not include lawful acts of self-defense or defense of others.

"Work practice controls" means procedures and rules which are used to effectively reduce workplace violence hazards.

II. WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PLAN PROCEDURES

a. Responsible Parties

The Principal or their designee is responsible for implementing this plan.

b. Employee Involvement in Plan Creation and Updates

Before this Plan was initially approved by the Encore Board of Directors, the Principal or their designee circulated a draft of the Plan to employees and requested feedback and suggestions on improving the Plan. All feedback received was reviewed and any revisions deemed warranted were implemented into the initial approved version of the Plan.

Every year, the Principal or their designee will circulate the Plan to employees to request suggestions on improving this Plan. Employees will be encouraged to provide input on ways they believe this Plan can be improved, streamlined, or better enforced. Employees will be encouraged to provide input on adequacy of training received, any perceived workplace violence hazards not adequately addressed by the Plan, and any perceived barriers to reporting and investigating instances of workplace violence incidents that they believe may stand in the way of optimal execution of this Plan.

These suggestions and input may be submitted confidentially to the Assistant Dean of Student Services. No retaliation against any such input or suggestion shall be permitted. Encore commits to reviewing each employees' suggestion and making any changes to this Plan that are found to be necessary and appropriate.

c. Coordinated Implementation

If there are workers who regularly perform job duties at Encore's campus or other workplace but are not employed by Encore, the Principal or their designee will verify that each such worker's employer has a workplace violence prevention plan in place and that all such employees of that employer who regularly work at Encore are receiving adequate training and that those other employers have procedures in place for the reporting, investigation, and recording of workplace violence incidents.

d. Reporting of Workplace Violence

Employees must report any incident of workplace violence that they witness. Encore will not retaliate against any employee for reporting an incident of workplace violence in good faith.

Page 2

Reports of workplace violence that has already occurred can be made by filling out the "Workplace Violence Report" form that is attached at the end of this Plan and sending it to the Principal or their designee by email. The Principal and or designee will review every Workplace Violence Report at their earliest reasonable convenience and shall take the steps outlined in this Plan in response. Copies of the Workplace Violence Report form shall be made available to all employees at the receptionist desk in the A building.

If an incident of <u>workplace violence is occurring or imminent</u>, any employee witness should ensure that Principal or their designee is informed as soon as possible by calling the Principal or their designee at 760.956.7687 or by using whatever alternative means of communication would be fastest. The Principal or their designee will respond to the ongoing or imminent workplace violence as set forth in section II.G., below.

e. Employee Compliance

All employees are responsible for using safe work practices and for following all directives, policies, and procedures for maintaining a safe, healthy, and secure work environment. This Plan seeks to ensure that employees, including administrators, comply with work practices designed to make the workplace more secure, and to ensure that employees do not engage in threats or physical actions which create a security hazard for others in the workplace.

All employees will be trained to understand this Plan when hired and periodically afterward. Employees will be evaluated to ensure compliance with this Plan. Employees who participate in the implementation of this Plan and carrying out its provisions in practice will be recognized for their efforts to help ensure a safe and violence-free workplace.

Repeated or willful failure to report incidents of workplace violence, failure to attend and participate in workplace violence training, and to otherwise comply with the requirements of this Plan will result in additional training and may result in disciplinary action.

f. Communication to Employees Regarding Workplace Violence

As part of the annual workplace violence training session required by this Plan, the Principal or their designee shall ensure that each employee understands how to report a violence incident, a threat, or any other incidence of workplace violence and knows that they can do so without fear of reprisal by Encore or retaliation from the individual against whom the report is made.

These points will be communicated to new employees when hired and periodically as set forth in this Plan. The Principal or their designee shall also ensure that each employee understands how their concerns will be investigated by Encore and how Encore will communicate the results of a workplace violence hazard investigation and any corrective measures taken in response.

As part of the annual workplace violence training, every employee shall sign a certificate attesting that they understand these items, and each of these certificates shall be retained pursuant to Part V of this Plan ("Recordkeeping").

Page 3

Depending on the frequency and severity of workplace violence incidents in the workplace, the Principal or their designee may implement increasingly more frequent communication sessions with employees as necessary, including quarterly, monthly, or weekly reviews of this Plan and employee compliance with it.

g. Response to Actual or Potential Workplace Violence Emergencies

A workplace violence emergency is any incidence of workplace violence that entails the potential loss of life or significant injury to any person at the workplace.

If a workplace violence emergency is so severe as to trigger a lockdown or evacuation of the workplace according to the School's safety plan, such as when firearms are involved or a when an intruder has entered the campus with violent or criminal intent, Encore will initiate and follow the emergency procedures set forth in its school safety plan.

If a workplace violence emergency does not rise to the level of a school-wide response but is ongoing and entails potential or threatened loss of life or significant injury to any person at the workplace, any other employees witnessing or experiencing the workplace violence incident must report the incident as soon as possible to Principal or their designee and/or other responsible administrator or Campus Aides, if any by calling them on the phone or by hand held walkies.

1. Ensure Safety:

- a. Remove yourself and others from immediate danger if it is safe to do so.
- b. If evacuation is not possible, find a secure location to hide and lock or barricade doors.

2. Call Law Enforcement:

- a. **Dial emergency services (911)** immediately.
- b. Provide the dispatcher with clear and concise information:
- c. Your name and location (address, floor, room number).
- d. **Nature of the incident** (e.g., active shooter, physical assault).
- e. **Description of the perpetrator** (appearance, clothing, weapons, any distinguishing features).
- f. Number of people involved or injured.
- g. Current location of the perpetrator if known.
- h. Any other relevant details that can assist responders.

3. Follow Instructions:

- a. Follow any instructions given by the dispatcher.
- b. Stay on the line if it is safe to do so, providing updates as the situation evolves.

h. Training Procedures

Page 4

Encore will provide annual workplace violence prevention training in accordance with the requirements of California Labor Code section 6401.9, subdivision (e), including but not limited to the following:

- 1. The Plan, how to obtain a copy of the Plan at no cost, and how to participate in development and implementation of the Plan.
- 2. The Plan's definitions and the General Workplace Violence Plan Procedures.
- 3. How employees can search for and recognize workplace violence hazards and risk factors associated with the three types of workplace violence.
- 4. How to report workplace violence incidents, threats, or concerns to the school or to law enforcement without fear of reprisal from the school or the individual against whom the report is filed.
- 5. Ways to defuse hostile or threatening situations.
- 6. Routes and methods of escaping from workplace violence incidents.
- 7. How this Plan integrates with the school's safety plan.
- 8. How and when to notify law enforcement authorities when a criminal act may have occurred or is potentially about to occur.
- 9. Emergency medical care to be provided to a victim of any violent act.
- 10. Any workplace violence hazards specific to the school environment, the corrective measures the school has implemented, and how to seek assistance to prevent or respond to violence and to avoid physical harm.
- 11. The workplace violence incident log, and how to obtain records the school is required to keep pursuant to the Recordkeeping part of this Plan, below.
- 12. An opportunity for live questions and answers on the Plan with the Assistant Dean of Student Services.

In addition to an annual training session on these topics, the school will conduct training every time a new or previously unrecognized workplace violence hazard is identified and whenever changes are made to the Plan. This additional training may be limited only to the new workplace violence hazards identified or to the new changes to the Plan.

The Principal or their designee will ensure that this training is completed and that records of employee participation are kept and filed in accordance with Part IV of this Plan ("Recordkeeping").

i. Identification and Evaluation of Workplace Violence Hazards

Workplace violence hazards are working conditions or environmental factors that increase employee exposure to workplace violence. Workplace violence hazards may arise from, for example, a school's failure to consistently require campus visitors to check in at the front desk, failure to monitor entry and exit points for unauthorized entry, failure to consistently enforce employee behavioral conduct rules, failure to consistently enforce student disciplinary rules that could expose employees to violence, and other similar policy or environmental factors that would tend to increase the incidence of workplace violence.

Page 5

The Principal or their designee shall ensure that a review of potential workplace violence hazards is conducted at least annually. The Principal or their designee shall also conduct a review of any workplace violence hazards reported by any employee. In addition, the Principal or their designee shall also conduct a workplace violence hazard review (1) when this Plan is first established, (2) after each workplace violence incident has occurred, and (3) whenever the employer otherwise is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized workplace violence hazard.

Each time a workplace violence hazard review is undertaken, the Principal or their designee shall prepare a report describing the review process, stating date the review was completed, stating the determination of whether a workplace hazard was found to exist, and describing whether any corrective actions are recommended. All workplace hazard evaluation reports shall be kept as records pursuant to Part V of this Plan.

j. Correction of Workplace Violence Hazards

Each time a workplace violence hazard review is conducted and results in a recommendation that corrective action should be implemented to mitigate an existing workplace violence hazard, the Principal or their designee shall prepare a recommendation for corrective action and present it to the School Principal who shall approve, deny, or approve with modification, the recommendation for corrective action and provide a justification for any denial or modification. The recommendation for corrective action and School Principal response shall be kept as a record pursuant to Part V of this Plan.

Following the School Principal taking action on a recommendation for corrective action, the School Principal or designee shall be responsible for ensuring that the corrective action is implemented as workplace policy and, if relevant, that all employees are alerted to and trained on any necessary changes in workplace policies necessary to implement the approved corrective action. If any corrective actions require revisions to an employee handbook, those changes shall be implemented within a reasonable time.

k. Post-Incident Response and Investigation

After every reported or otherwise known incident of workplace violence, the Principal or their designee shall conduct a workplace violence evaluation of any and all workplace conditions, policies, or practices that may have contributed to the occurrence of the incidence of workplace violence and shall record a record of the evaluation, as required by Section II.i., above.

Post-incident reviews shall include, at minimum, an interview with the victim of workplace violence, any witnesses, and the impressions of the Principal or their designee and/or designees assisting in the post-incident response. The interview and investigation shall seek to establish all facts required to be included in a Violent Incident Log, as set forth in Part III of this Plan.

Employees will be encouraged to provide feedback and information as part of the post-incident response. Employees who refuse to participate may be subject to discipline. Employees

Page 6

should be alerted that they are not subject to retaliation or reprisal from Encore as a consequence of their participation in any post-incident response.

l. Review of Plan Effectiveness

The Principal or their designee shall review the general effectiveness of this Plan annually at the time the Plan is circulated to employees for suggestions, whenever a deficiency in the Plan is noted, and after any workplace violence incident occurs.

III. VIOLENT INCIDENT LOG

Encore will maintain a Violent Incident Log. The Principal or their designee shall ensure that the details of every violent incident reported or otherwise known to have occurred at the school are recorded into the Violent Incident Log. The log shall contain information solicited from the person experiencing the workplace violence incident, any witnesses, and investigation findings. All personal identifying information shall be omitted from the log, with the exception of the details of the person making the entry. The log shall be reviewed during any periodic reviews of this Plan for effectiveness.

The Violent Incident Log, for every incident, shall include the following:

- 1. The date, time, and location of the incident.
- 2. The type or types of workplace violence involved.
- 3. A detailed description of the incident.
- 4. Who committed the violence, including whether the perpetrator was a School stakeholder, family or friend of a School stakeholder, stranger with criminal intent, coworker, supervisor or manager, partner or spouse, parent or relative, or another perpetrator.
- 5. The **general circumstances** at the time of the incident, including, but not limited to, whether the employee was completing usual job duties, working in poorly lit areas, rushed, working during a low-staffing level, isolated or alone, unable to get help or assistance, working in a community setting, or working in an unfamiliar or new location.
- 6. Where the incident occurred, such as in the workplace, parking lot, or other area outside the workplace, or other area.
- 7. The **type of attack**: physical attack without a weapon; attack with a weapon or object; a threat of physical force or threat of use of a weapon or other object; sexual assault or threat of sexual assault; animal attack; other.
- 8. The consequences of the incident, including whether security or law enforcement was contacted; actions taken to protect employees from continuing threat, etc.
- 9. **Information on the person entering the log entry**, including their name, job title, and date entered.

IV. RECORDKEEPING

Page 7

This Plan requires that various records pertaining to workplace violence be maintained, as follows:

- 1. Records of workplace violence hazard identification, evaluation, and correction shall be created and maintained for a minimum of five (5) years.
- 2. Training records shall be created and maintained for a minimum of one (1) year, and shall include dates training was conducted, the contents or a summary of the training sessions conducted, the names and qualifications of persons conducting the training, and the names and job titles of all persons attending the training sessions.
- 3. Violent Incident Logs shall be maintained for a minimum of five (5) years.
- 4. Records of workplace violence incident investigations shall be maintained for a minimum of five (5) years.
- 5. All records required to be maintained per this Part of the Plan are to be made available to the Department of Industrial Relations upon request for examination and copying.
- 6. All records required pursuant to items (1) through (3) of this Part shall be made available to employees and their representatives, upon request and without cost, for examination and copying within 15 calendar days of a request.



This form should be used to report any incidence of workplace violence that any employee of Encore witnesses at the workplace or any work-related event. Employees are required to report any workplace violence they witness and will not be subject to any retaliation for reporting workplace violence.

"Workplace Violence" includes but is not limited to the following: (i) the threat or use of physical force against an employee that results in, or has a high likelihood of resulting in, injury, psychological trauma or stress, regardless of whether the employee sustains an injury; (ii) an incident involving a threat or use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, including the use of common objects as weapons, regardless of whether the employee sustains an injury; (iii) the following four workplace violence types:

- *Type 1*: violence committed by a person with no legitimate business at the worksite;
- Type 2: violence directed at employees by students, parents, contractors, volunteers, or visitors:
- Type 3: violence against an employee by a present or former employee, supervisor, or manager;
- Type 4: violence committed in the workplace by a person who does not work there, but has or is known to have had a personal relationship with an employee.

"Workplace Violence" does not include lawful acts of self-defense or defense of others.

If you have witnessed a workplace violence incident, please enter as much of the following information as you can:

Date of Report:	Date(s) of Incident:
Reporter's Name:	
Reporter's Job Title:	
Reporter's email address or telephone num	ıber:
Victim Name(s) (if other than Reporter):	

Page 9

Victim's Job Title (If other than Reporter):
Victim's email address or telephone number:
Approximate Place of Incident:
Approximate Time of Incident:
Narrative Description of Workplace Violence Incident:
Type of Workplace Violence (see definitions above):
Name, Description, or other information about Perpetrator(s):
Thank you for submitting this information. You may be contacted by administration to provide further information. Please sign below to verify the accuracy of the information provided on this form.
Reporter's Signature

Page 10

							DATE	
							TIME	
							LOCATI	
							DISCRIPTION	≤
							CIRCU MSTAN	VIOLENT INCIDENT LOG
							ATTAC KER	CIDENT L
							AREA	90
							TYPE OF	
							WHO ENTERED	
							JOB TITLE	

Page 11 Workplace Violence Prevention Plan (Encore) for Board Approval June 17, 2024